Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2014

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Note

Hotel revenue
Rental income
Property sales
Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income
Administration expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

WWwN

Finance income 5
Finance costs 5
Net finance income

Share of profit/(loss} of associate 13
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 6
Profit for the year

Aftributable to:

Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share {cents) 9
Diluted earnings per share {cents) 9

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2014

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Note
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation/impairment of property, plant and

equipment 10
- Tax expense on revaluation/impairment of

property, plant and equipment 6,21
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation movements 5
- Tax credit on foreign exchange translation

movements 6.21
Share of post acquisition reserves in associate i3

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to :

Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Group

2014 2013
83,086 77,964
2,818 2,893
44,160 38,352
130,064 119,209
(58,377) (53,165)
71,687 66,044
18,138 4,197
(26,645) (21,317
(18,799) (18,968)
44,381 29,956
4,236 4,135
(3,245) (2,712)
991 1,423
(370) 9,751
45,002 41,130
(9,422) (8,919)
35,580 32,211
30,191 27,107
5,389 5,104
35,580 32,211
9.54 7.76
9.54 7.76

Group

2014 2013
35,580 32,211
17,793 10,308
(600) (3,729)
17,193 6,579
(6,727) (5,453)
417 1,815
(933) 6
(7,243) (3,632)
45,530 35,158
39,766 31,762
5,764 3,396
45,530 35,158

Parent

2014 2013
36,733 35,303
36,733 35,303
{14,550) (14,307)
22,183 20,996
36,249 3,761
(9,677) (6.486)
(6,891) (7,431)
41,864 10,840
6,249 7.267
(1,470) (1,371)
4,779 5,896
46,643 16,736
(3,639) (4,057)
43,004 12,679
43,004 12,679
43,004 12,679

Parent

2014 2013
43,004 12,679
15,064 699
(436) (436)
14,628 263
57,632 12,942
57,632 12,942
57,632 12,942

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Group
. Non-
Share Revaluation Exchange Accumulated  Treasury . Total
Capital Reserve Reserve Losses Stock Total controlling Equity

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Interests
Balance at 1 January 2014 430,330 78,308 1,177 (43,303) (85) 466,427 100,755 567,182
Movement in exchange translation reserve, net of
tax - - (15,244) - - {15,244) (1,017)  (18,261)
Reclassification of exchange franslation reserve
to profit or loss arising from disposal of associate - - 9,951 - - 9,951 - 9,951
Revaluationfimpairment of property, plant &
equipment, net of tax - 15,802 - - - 15,802 1,391 17,193
Share of post acquisition reserves in associate - - - (934) - {934) 1 {233)
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) - 15,802 (5,293) {934) - 9,575 375 9,950
Profit for the year - - - 30,191 - 30,191 5,389 35,580
Total comprehensive income for the year - 15,802 (5,293} 29,257 - 39,766 5,764 45,530
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity:
Redeemable preference shares issued 111,231 - - - - 111,231 - 111,231
Capital reduction in subsidiary - - - - - - (2,470} (2,470)
Cancellation of shares and distribution in
specie {158,295) - - (90,430) 59  (248,6686) - (248,666)
Dividends paid to:

Owners of the parent - - - (6,287) - (6,287) - (6,287}

Non-controlling interests - - - - - - (2,473) (2,473}
Supplementary dividends - - - {(198) - (198) - (198)
Foreign investment tax credits - - - 198 - 198 - 198
Movement in nen-controlling interests
without a change in control - - - 8,889 - 8,889 (23,229) {14,340)
Balance at 31 December 2014 383,266 94,110 {4,116) {101,874) {26) 371,360 78,347 449,707

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Group
Non-
Share Revaluation Exchange Accumulated  Treasury controlling Total

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Capital Reserve Reserve Losses Stock Total Interests Equity
Balance at 1 January 2013 430,330 73,624 1,170 (61,761) (85) 443,278 98,516 541,794
Movement in exchange translation reserve, net of
tax - - 7 - - 7 {3,645) (3,638)
Revaluation/impairment of property, plant &
equipment - 4,684 - - - 4,684 1,885 6,579
Share of post acquisition reserves in associate - - - (35) - (35) 41 6
Total other comprehensive income/({loss) - 4,684 7 (35) - 4,656 (1,709) 2,947
Profit for the year - - - 27,107 - 27,107 5,104 32,211
Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,684 7 27,072 - 31,763 3,395 35,158
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity:
Dividends paid to:

Owners of the parent - - - (8,382) - (8,382) - (8,382)

Non-controlling interests - - - - - - (1,894) {1,894)
Supplementary dividends - - - (316) - {316) - (316)
Foreign investment tax credits - - - 316 - 316 - 316
Movement in non-controlling interests
without a change in control - - - (232} - (232) 738 506
Balance at 31 December 2013 430,330 78,308 1,177 (43,303) {85) 466,427 100,755 567,182

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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Millennium & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Parent
Share Revaluation  Accumulated Treasury Total

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Capital Reserve Losses Stock Equity
Balance at 1 January 2014 430,330 43,140 (141,125) (85) 332,260
Revaluation/impairment of property, plant and
equipment, net of tax - 14,628 - - 14,628
Total other comprehensive income - 14,628 - - 14,628
Profit for the year - - 43,004 - 43,004
Total comprehensive income for the year - 14,628 43,004 - 57,632
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity:
Redeemable preference shares issued 111,231 - - - 111,231
Cancellation of shares and distribution in
specie {158,295) (90,430) 59 (248,666)
Dividends paid to shareholders - - {6.287) - {6,287)
Amalgamation of subsidiary - - {3,372) (3,372)
Supplementary dividends - - (198) - {198)
Foreign investment tax credits - ‘ - 198 - 198
Balance at 31 December 2014 383,266 57,768 {198,210) (26) 242,798
Balance at 1 January 2013 430,330 42.877 (145,422) (85) 327,700
Revaluation/impairment of property, plant and :
equipment, net of tax - 263 - - 263 :
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) - 263 - - 263 .
Profit for the year ] ; 12,679 - 12679 |
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for
the year - 263 12,679 - 12,942
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity:
Dividends paid to shareholders - - (8.382) - (8,382)
Supplementary dividends - - (316) - (316)
Foreign investment tax credits - - 316 - 316
Balance at 31 December 2013 430,330 43,140 (141,125) (85) 332,260

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Treasury stock

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Represented by:

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Development properties
Intangible assets

Loans due from related parties
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in associates

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Short term bank deposits
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables due from related parties
Loans due from related parties
Income tax receivable
Inventories

Development properties
Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Provision for deferred taxation

Total non-current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

Trade payables due 10 related parties
Loans due to related parties
Provisions

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

For and on behalf of the Board

A ceect s

R BOBB, DIRECTOR, 10 February 2013

Note

Group
2014

383,266

309,148
122,738
2,823

2
434,711

24,022
83,572
16,849

1,256
24,652
298
150,649

585,360

61,500
41,865
103,365

6,921
20,967
504

3,000
896
32,288
135,653

449,707

2013

430,330
36,182
(85)
466,427
100,755
567,182

293,719
106,032
2,823

185,331
587,905

82,085

13,617

1,087
1,379
33,178

131,246
719,151
80,878
742

43,685
125,205

14,484
537
9,500
2,243
26,764
151,969

567,182

Parent
2014
383,266
(140,442)
(26)
242,798

242,798

155,345
2,823
78,935
237,103
193
48,500
4,787
4,302
3,900
782

264

298
63,026

300,129

26,500
20,045
486,545

3,572
3,710
504
3,000
10,786
57,331

242,798

BK CHIU, MANAGING DIRECTOR, 10 February 2015

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements

FIN 5

2013

430,330
(97,985)

(85)
332,250

332,280

143,744

2,823
84,202
136,518

367,287

22,425

3,895
12,158
4,600

379

43,457
410,744

42,035

742
20,207
62,984

3,095
537
9,500
2,243
125
15,500

78,484

332,260



Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2014

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers

Receipts from insurers

Interest received

Dividends received

Cash was applied to:

Payments to suppliers and employees
Purchase cf development land
interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities '

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was (applied to)/provided from:

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment

Repayments from subsidiaries

Return of surplus capital from associate
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries
Purchase of investment in associate
Investments in short term bank deposits

Net cash outflow from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was (applied to)/provided from:
Repayment of borrowings

Drawdown of borrowings

Loans advanced to subsidiaries

Repayment of oan from parent company
Proceeds from the issuance of new shares net
of issuance costs

Dividends paid to sharehoiders of Millennium &
Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Lid

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Add opening cash and cash equivalents
Exchange rale adjustment

Closing cash and cash equivalents

Group

Note 2014
127,497
57
4127
5 2
(95,018)
{4,522)
{2,428)
(9,349)
20,366
13 4,309
10 {6,691)
{(14,250)
13 {58,510)
(83,572)
{158,714)
19 (138,378)
19 125,921
27 -
27 {9,500)
8 111,231
8 (6,287)
{2,473)
80,514
(57,834)
82,085
(229)
14 24,022

2013

125,284
41
3,988

2

(95,270)
(3,833)
(2,821)

(10,492)

16,899

37

(5:425)

(40,303)

(45,691)

(44,319)
59,618

(8,382)
(1,894)

5,023
(23,769)
109,508

(3.654)

82,085

Parent

2014

35434

2,554
3,695

(26,075)

(718)
(2.737)

12,155

700
4,309
(1,617)
(14,250)
(58.510)
(48,500)

(117,868)

(99,535)
87,572
(9,500)

111,231

(6,287)
83,481
(22,232)

22,425

193

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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2013

39,565
4,215
3,052

(37,551)

(1,451)
(3,958)

3,872

2
200

(1,209)
(3,052)

{4,149)

(35,869)
52,234
(41,656)

(8,382)

{33,673)

(33,950)
56,375

22,425



Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Cash Flows - continued
-For the year ended 31 December 2014

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS Note

RECOCNCILIATION OF NET PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR TO CASH FLOWS

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Adjusted for non cash items:

Gain on distribution in specie 2
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 3
Depreciation 10
Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Share of loss/(profit) of associate 13
Income tax expense 6

Adjustments for movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
Decrease in inventories

Increase in development properties
Increase/{decrease) in trade & other payables
(Decrease)/increase in related parties

Cash generated from operations

Interest expense 5
Income tax paid

Cash inflows from operating activifies

The accompanying notes form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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Group
2014

35,580

(17,643)
(209)
9,051

722
370
9,422

37,293

(3.112)
123
(10,332)
8,299
(33)

32,238

(2,523)
(9,349)

20,366

2013

32,211

(49)
6,522
(9,751)
8,919

37,852

1,774
75
(3,372)
(6,337)
72

30,064

(2,673)
(10,492)

16,899

Parent
2014

43,004

(35,754)
(6)
5,079
719
3,639

16,681

(1,788)
115

568
(33)

15,643

(751)
(2,737)

12,155

2013

12,679

(2)
2,818
4,057

19,552

501
39

(8.352)
(2,574)

9,166

(1,336)
(3,958)

3,872




Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies

Miltennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited is a company domiciled in New Zealand registered under the Companies Act
1993 and listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Millennium & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited (the “Company”) is an
issuer in terms of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred 10 as the “Group"). The registered office is located at Level 13, 280
Centre, 280 Queen Street, Auckland, New Zealand.

The principal aciivities of the Group are ownership and operation of hotels in New Zealand; residential development and sale of
land in New Zealand; development and sale of residential units in Australia and associate investment in residential and commercial
property development in China.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRSs) as
appropriate for profit-oriented entities. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs).

From 1 April 2014, the new Financial Reporting Act 2013 ("FRA 2013") has come into force replacing the Financial
Reporting Act 1993. This is effective for all for-profit entities with reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014. This
will be effective for the Group's 31 December 2015 year end. It is expected that the change in legislation will have no
material impact on the Group’s obligation to prepare general purpose financial statements.

In addition to the change in legislation the Extemal Reporting Board of New Zealand (“XRB") has released a new
accounting standards framework which establishes the financial standards to be applied to entities with statutory financial
reporting obligations. The Group is currently reporting under NZ IFRS. Under the new XRB framework Management
expects that the Group will continue to apply NZ IFRS as applicable for Tier 1 for-profit entities. Management expects that
this will have no material impact on the preparation and disclosures included in the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issuance on 10 February 2015.
{b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on
the historical cost basis except that hotel land and buildings are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimales
and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any fulure period affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in Note
28 - Accounting Estimates and Judgements.

(c) Change in accocunting policies
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.
(d) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses of income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to lhe extent thal there is no evidence of impairment.

Investments in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but nol control or joint control, over the
financial and operating policies. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially
recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income (OCI} of equity-accounted
investees, until the date on which significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term invesiments} is reduced to nil
and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies - continued

(e) Foreign cumrency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance date are translated to New Zealand
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign cumrencies that are slated at fair value are translated to New Zealand dollars at foreign exchange

rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are
translated to New Zealand dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance date. The revenues and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to New Zealand dollars at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on re-translation are recognised directly as a separate
component of equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the exchange

reserve is released into the income statement.
(f) Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise related party advances, trade and other receivables, cash and cash

equivalents, loans and borrowings,.and lrade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through the
income statement, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial

instruments are measured as described in accounting policies below.

Financial assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if
the Group transfer the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or

cancelled.
Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in accounting policy {v).

(g} Insurance proceeds

Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were damaged, impaired, lost or given up
is included in the profit or loss when the compensation becomes virtually certain. Any subsequent purchase or

construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties to cover business interruption is determined with the agreed formula in the insurance
policy and recognised in the profit and loss for the applicable period. Installment payments from third parties are not

recognised in the profit and loss until full settlement is agreed with the third parties.

{h) Property, plant and equipment

Initial recording

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. The cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is
the value of the consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other directly attributable costs, which have
been incurred in bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for their intended service. Where parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separale items of property,

plant and equipment.

Capital expenditure on major projects is recorded separately within property, plant and equipment as capital work in
progress. Once the project is complele the balance is transferred to the appropriate property, plant and equipment

categories. Capilal work in progress is not depreciated.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment is subseguently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for land and buildings which are re-valued. The Group recognises the cost of replacing part of such an item of
property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item ¢an be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in

the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Disposal or retirement

Gains or losses arising from the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
belween the actual net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income

statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Revaluation

Land and buildings are shown at fair value less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Fair value is determined by
management using valuation models and confirmed by independent registered valuers on a triennial basis. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the re-valued amount of the asset. Any decreases in value that offset a previous increase in
value of the same asset is charged against reserves in equity, any other decrease in value is charged to the income

statement.
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies - continued

(h) Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or
re-valued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building core 50 years or lease term if shorter
Building surfaces and finishes 30 years or lease term if shorter
Plant and machinery 15 - 20 years

Fumniture and equipment 10 years

Soft furnishings 5-7 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

No residual vafues are ascribed o building surfaces and finishes. Residual values ascribed to building core depend on
the nature, location and tenure of each property.

() Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for impairment, which is recorded through the income
statement.

(i) Development properties

Property held for future development and development property completed and held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined by independent valuers. Cost includes the cost of
acquisition, development, and holding costs. All holding costs incurred after completion of development are expensed as
incurred. Revenue and profil are not recognised on development properties until the legal titie passes to the buyer when
the full settlement of the purchase consideration of the properties occurs.

(k) Intangible assets

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents amounts arising on
acquisition of subsidiaries. For business acquisitions that have occurred between 1 January 2004 and 31 December
2009, goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired. For acquisitions prior to this date, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. For acquisitions on or after January 2010,
the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

*  The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

s«  The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus if the business combination is
achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

«  The net recognised amount {generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
not amortised but is tested annually for impairment {see accounting policy (o).

Cther intangible assets
Cther intangible assels that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation {see below) and
impairment losses (see accounting policy {o}}.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when It increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of other intangible
assets.

The estimated useful lives utilised are as follows:

Management contracts 12 years
Leasehold interests 10 -27 years

{1} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and calt deposits with an criginal maturity of three menths or less.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included
as a component of cash and cash eguivalents for the purpese of the statement of cash flows.
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies - continued
(m) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less impairment losses (see accounting policy {0}}.

{n} Inventories

[nventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and seliing expenses.

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the

inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.

(o) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets other than development properties (see accounting palicy (j)), inventories
(see accounting policy {n)) and deferred tax assels (see accounting policy (w)}, are reviewed at each balance date 10
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assel's recoverable amount is

estimated.

In relation 1o properties that have been damaged by earthquakes, the land and building are separately reviewed for
impairment. The carrying value of land is compared to its fair value based on comparable market sales. The carrying

value of building is compared to the indemnified sum insured for material damage.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement unless the asset is recorded
at a re-valued amount in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease through the statement of comprehensive

income.

impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (groups of units) and then, 1o reduce the carrying amount of the other

assets in the unil {group of units) on a pro rata basis.

W Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present
value of estimaled future cash flows, discounted at the original effective inlerest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these financlal assets). Receivables with a short duration are not

discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(i) Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed if the subsequent increase
in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is

reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

{(p) Interest-bearing loans and bomrowings

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less aftributable transaction cosis.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an

effective interest basis.

(q) Employee long-tenm service benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefils, is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using their expected

remuneration and an assessment of likelihood the liability will arise.

{r) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 10 setlle the
obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows al a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to

the liability.
(s) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at cost.
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Millennium & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies -~ continued

{1) Share capital

Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equily is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly
attributed costs, is recognised as a change in equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury stock and
presented as a deduction from total equity.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

(u) Revenue

Revenue represents amounts derived from:

e The ownership, management and operation of hotels: recognised on an accruals basis to match the provision
of the related goods and services.

. Income from property rental: recognised on an accruals basis, straight line over the lease period. Lease
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income.

. Income from development property sales: recognised on the transfer of the related significant risk and
rewards of ownership, which is not until legal titie passes to the buyer when the full settlement of the
purchase consideration of lhe properties occurs.

(v) Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease
expense.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of lhe outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income and foreign currency gains that are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entily's right to receive payments is established which in
the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

Finance expenses comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate method and
foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement.

Interest attributable to funds used to finance the development or construction of new hotels, major extensions to
existing hotels or development properties is capitalised gross of tax relief and added to the cost of the hotel core
buildings or development property.

{w) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax Is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case It s recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted al the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previcus years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are
not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that neither affect
accounting nor taxable profit; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefil will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right fo set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; the Group intends to settle net; and the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability lo
pay the related dividend.
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies - continued

(x} Segment reporting

An operating segment is a distinguishable compenent of the Group:

that is engaged in business activities from which it eams revenues and incurs expenses,

whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
on resource allocation to the segment and assess its performance, and

for which discrete financial information is available.

(v) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments to standards are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements,

NZ IFRS 9- Financial Instruments (effective after T January 2017)

NZ IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 20716)

NZ IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements (effective T January 2076)

NZ IFRS 15 - Revenue from Conslruction Contracis {effective T January 2017)

NZ IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment (effective 1 January 2016)

NZ [AS 19 - Employee Benefits (effective after T January 2075}

NZ [AS 38 - Intangible Assets (effective T January 2016)

NZ [AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 7 January 20716)

The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a material impact on the Group's or Company’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's reporting segments. Operating segments are the primary
basis of segment reporting. The Group has determined that its chief operating decision maker is the Board of Directors
on the basis that it is this group which determines the allocation of resources to segments and assesses their

performance.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis. Segment results include items directly atéributable to a

segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reascnable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to

be used for more than one pericd.

Operating segments

The Group consisted of the following main operating segments:

e  Hotel operations, comprising income from the ownership and management of hotels.
¢ Residential land development, comprising the development and sale of land.

. Residential and commercial property development, comprising the development and sale of residential

apartments and commercial properties.

Gecgraphical areas

The Group operates in the following main geographical areas:

. New Zealand.
«  Australia.

«  Asia (predominantly China).

Segment revenue is based on the geographical location of the asset. The Group has no major customer representing

greater than 10% of the Group’s total revenue,

The Parent operates in one segment only, being ownership and management of hotels in New Zealand.

Operating segmenits
Residential &
Commercial
Residential Land Property
Hote! Operations Development Development Group
Doflars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 | 2013 2014 | 2013
External revenue 83,086 77,964 44,160 38,352 2,818 2,893 130,064 119,208
Finance income 2,126 2,101 1,358 1,100 752 934 4,236 4,135
Finance expense {1,225) (479 (12) - {2,008) (2,237 {3,245) (2,712)
Depreciation and amortisation {5,034) {6,494} (1) (2) (16} (26} (9,051) (6,522)
Segmenlt profit/{loss) before income
tax 11,046 15,419 20,537 18,550 13,789 (2,590) 45,372 31,379
Share of {loss)/profit of associates - - - - (370) 9,751 (370) 9,751
Profit before income tax 11,046 15419 20,537 18,550 13,419 7,161 45,002 41,130
Income tax (expense)/credit {4,3486) (4,493) (5.827) (5.148) 751 720 {9.422) (8,919)
Other material/non-cash items:
Business interruption insurance
income 495 4,197 - - - - 495 4,197
Gain on distribution in specie - - - - 17,643 - 17,643 -
Segment assets 380,568 337,522 130,467 120,333 74,323 74,878 585,358 532,733
Tax assets - (130) - (1,120} - 2,337 - 1,087
Investment in associates - - 2 2 - 185,329 2 185,331
Total assets 380,568 337,392 130,469 119,215 74,323 262,544 585,360 719,151
Segment liabilities (84,867) (96,958) (240) (218) {7,785y  (11,208) (92,892)  (108,384)
Tax liabilities (43,154} (44,001) {1,740) (132) 2,133 548 (42,761) (43,585)
Total liabilities {128,021}  (140,959) {1,980} (350} (5,652) (10,66Q) | {(135,653) (151,969)
Capital expenditure 5,685 5,418 3 - 3 7 6,691 5,425
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Segment reporting - continued
Geographical areas
New Zealand Australia Asia Group
Doliars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 | 2013 2014 2013 2014 | 2013
External revenue 127,246 116,316 2,818 2,893 - - 130,064 119,209
Finance income 3,546 3,256 690 879 - - 4,236 4,135
Finance expense (3,241) {2,708) 4) 4) - - (3.245) (2,712)
Depreciation and amortisation (9,035) (6,496) (16) (26) - - (9,051} (6,522)
Segment profit/(loss) before income
tax 47,517 32,268 (2,145) (889) - - 45,372 31,379
Share of (loss)/profit of associates - - - - (370) 9,751 (370) 9,751
Profit before income tax 47,517 32,268 (2,145) (B89} (370) 9,751 45,002 41,130
Income tax (expense)credit {(10,056) (9.007) 634 88 - - {9.422) (8,919)
Other material/non-cash items:
Business interruption insurance
income 485 4,197 - - - - 495 4197
Gain on distribution in specie 17,643 - - - - - 17,643 -
Segment assets 512,892 459,478 72,466 73,255 - - 585,358 532,733
Tax assels - 1,017 - 70 - - - 1,087
Investment in associates 2 2 - - - 185,328 2 185,331
Total assets 512,894 460,497 72,466 73,325 - 185,329 585,360 719,151
Segment liabilities (85,136)  (105,283) (7.7586) (3,101) - - (92,892)  (108,384)
Tax liabilities {44,921) {(44,133) 2,160 548 - - {42,761) (43,585)
Total liabilities (130,057}  {148,416) (5,596) (2,553) - - | (135653) (151,969}
Capital expenditure 6,688 5418 3 7 - - 6,691 5,425
2. Other income
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Business interruption insurance income 495 4,197 495 3,761
Gain on distribution in specie 13(f} 17,643 - 35,754 -
18,138 4,197 36,249 3,761
The business interruption insurance income relates 1o Millennium Hotel Christchurch in the current period and in the previous period it
relates to all three Christchurch properties affected by the earthquakes.
3. Administration and other operating expenses
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Depreciation 10 9,051 6,522 5,079 2,818
Auditors remuneration
Audit fees 309 301 140 100
Tax compliance and advisory 210 241 79 19
Directors fees 26 265 269 116 116
Lease and rental expenses 24 2,139 1,994 94 93
Provision for bad debts
Debts written off 27 28 7 7
Movement in doubtful debt provision {12} (8) [3)] 13
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (209} (49} 6) (2)
Other 33,664 30,987 11,068 10,753
45,444 40,285 16,568 13,917
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Millennium & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

4, Personnel expenses
Group Parent
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Wages and salaries 31,798 30,721 10,672 10,391
Employee related expenses and benefits 5,253 4,897 2,143 2,020
Contributions to defined contribution plans 551 490 161 137
Increasef(decrease) in liability for long-service leave 13 (35) - -
37,615 36,073 12,976 12,548
The perscnnel expenses are included in cost of sales, administration expenses and other operating expenses in the income
statement.
5. Net finance income
Recognised in the income statement
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest income 4,234 4,133 2,554 4,215
Dividend income 2 2 3,685 3,052
Finance income 4,236 4,135 6,249 7,267
Interest expense {2,523) (2,673) (751) {1,336)
Net foreign exchange loss {722) (39) (719) (35)
Finance costs {3,245) (2,712) {1,470 {1,371}
Net finance income recognised In the income statement 991 1,423 4,779 5,896
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Group Parent
Doltars in Thousands Note 2014 | 2013 2014 2013
-Foreign exchange translation movements (16,678) (5,453) -
Reclassification of exchange translation reserve 1o profit and
loss arising from disposal of associate 13(f} 9,951 - -
Net finance income recognised in other comprehensive income (6,727} (5,453) -
6. Income tax expense
Recognised in the income slatement
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current tax expense
Current year 9,909 8,401 2,919 2,911
Adjustmenits for prior years 1,416 18 1,318 127
11,325 8,419 4,237 3,038
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary difference {1,903) 487 (598) 1,018
Adjustments for prior years - 13 - 1
{(1,903) 500 (598) 1,019
Total income tax expense in the income stalement 9,422 8,919 3,639 4,057
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

6. Income tax expense - continued

Reconciliation of tax expense

Group Parent
Doflars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Profit before income tax 45,002 41,130 46,643 16,736
Income tax at the company tax rate of 28% (2013: 28%) 12,601 11,516 13,060 4,686
Adjusted for:
Non-deductible expenses 639 167 307 97
Imputation credits - - {1,034) (854}
Tax rate difference (if different from 28% above) (45) (11 - -
Tax exempt income {5,302) (2,830) {10,012) -
Non-assessable gain on disposal of damaged propery - (10) - -
Tax arising from investment in associate 113 56 - -
Under/{over} provided in prior years 1,416 31 1,318 128
Total income tax expense 9,422 8,919 3,639 4,057
Effective tax rate 21% 22% 8% 24%
Deferred tax expense/{credit) recognised in other comprehensive income
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Relating to revaluation of property, plant and equipment 600 3,729 436 436
Relating to foreign currency translation of foreign subsidiaries {417) (1,815} - -
183 1,914 436 436
7. Imputation credits
Group
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 2013
Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods 52,767 46,547
The KIN Holdings Group has A$10.2 million (2013; A$10.0 million) franking credits available as at 31 December 2014.
8. Capital and reserves
Share capital
Group and Parent
2014 2014 2013 2013
Shares $000's Shares $000's
Ordinary shares issued 1 January 349,598,066 430,330 349,598,066 430,330
Ordinary shares cancelled via distribution in specie (244,019,776) (80,282) - -
Ordinary shares issued at 31 December - fully paid 105,578,290 350,048 349,598,066 430,330
Redeemable preference shares issued following rights issue 174,634,366 111,766 - -
Capitalised costs of raising capital - {535) - -
Redeemable preference shares cancelled via distribution in specie {121,894,823) (78,013} - -
Redeemable preference shares Issued at 31 December - fully paid 52,739,543 33,218 - -
Ordinary shares repurchased and held as treasury stock 1 January (329,627) (85) (329,627) (85)
Treasury stock cancelied via distribution in specie 230,080 59 - -
Ordinary shares repurchased and held as treasury siock 31 December (99,547) (26) (329,627) (85)
Total shares issued and outstanding 158,218,286 383,240 349,268,439 430,245

During the period the Company undertook a capital raising exercise to fund further investment in First Sponsor Capital Limited,
repay some debt, and fund proposed refurbishment work, On 17 February 2014 the Company announced the offer for eligible
shareholders to acquire one non-voting redeemable preference share for every two ordinary shares held. The offer was
oversubscribed and the application monies were received by the closing date on 19 March 2014. On 24 March 2014, 174,634,366
redeemable preference sharaes were allotted at $0.64 per preference share and trading commenced on 25 March 2014. The non-
voting redeemable preference shares rank equally with ordinary shares with respect to all distributions made by the Company
{including without limitation, to dividend payments) except for any distribulions made in the context of a liquidation of the Company.
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8. Capital and reserves - continued

At a special meeting of the shareholders on 19 June 2014, the shareholders approved a detailed proposal 1o return capital to the
shareholders by way of a scheme of arrangement under Part 15 of the Companies Act. This scheme involved: the cancellation of
approximately 70% of the Company’s ordinary and redeemable preference shares; and Lhe distribution of substantially all of the

shares in First Sponsor Group Limited to both holders of ordinary and redeemable preference shares.

On 17 July 2014, pursuant to the scheme, 244,019,776 ordinary shares were cancelled at the historical average price of $0.329
cents per share while 121,894,823 redeemable preference shares were cancelled at the issue price of $0.64 cents per share. The
treasury stock were also cancelled at the same ratio with 230,080 shares cancelled at the historical average of $0.25% per share.

At 31 December 2014, the authorised share capital consisted of 105,578,290 ordinary shares {2013: 349,598,066 ordinary shares)

with no par value and 52,739,543 redeemable preference shares (2013: nil) with no par value.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property, plant and equipment. Movements in the revaluation reserve arise from the revaiuation

surpluses and deficits of property, plant and equipment.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises the foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations.
Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid during the year ended 31 December:
Parent
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 [ 2013
Ordinary Dividend - 1.2 cents per qualifying ordinary share (2013: 1.2 cents) 6,287 4,191
Special Dividend - nil cents per qualifying crdinary share (2013: 1.2 cents) - 4,191
Supplementary Dividend - 0.2118 cents per qualifying ordinary share {2013: 0.4235 cents) 198 316
6,485 8,698
After 31 December 2014 the following dividends were declared by the directors. The dividends have nol been provided for and
there are no income tax conseguences.
Dolfars In Thousands Parent
Ordinary Dividend - 2.4 cents per qualifying share (2013: 1.2 cents) 3,797
Supplementary Dividend - 0.4235 cents per qualifying share (2013: 0.2118 cents) 120
Total Dividends 3,917
9, Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December 2014 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary and redeemable
preference shareholders of $30,191,000 (2013: $27,107,000) and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2014 of 316,354,813 (2013: 348,268,438), calculated as follows:
Profit attributable to shareholders
Group
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 | 2013
Profit for the year 35,580 32,211
Profit atiributable to non-controlling interests {5,389) (5,104)
Profit attributable to shareholders 30,191 27,107
Weighted average number of shares
Group
2014 | 2013

Weighted average number of shares (ordinary and redeemable preference shares)

Effect of own shares held (ordinary shares}

Welghted average number of shares for earnings per share calculation

316,578,540 349,598,066
(223,727) (329,627}

316,354,813 349,268,439

Diluted eamings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share.
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10. Property, plant and equipment
Group
Plant,
Leasshold  Equipment, Work
Freehold Freehold Land and Fixtures Motor In
Dollars In Thousands Land Buildings Buildings and Fittings  Vehicles  Progress Toial
Cost
Balance al 1 January 2013 93,871 159,351 22,145 86,163 147 890 362,567
Acquisitions - - - 92 - 5,333 5,425
Disposals - - - (535) (40} - {575)
Transfers between categories - 492 8 4,094 - (4.594) -
Transfer from accumulated depreciation
following revaluation - (1,078) 21 - - - {1.099)
Movements in foreign exchange - - - (82) {3) - (85)
Revaluation surplus/{deficit) (2,631) 12,173 766 - - - 10,308
Balance at 31 December 2013 91,240 170,938 22,898 89,732 104 1,629 376,541
Balance at 1 January 2014 91,240 170,938 22,898 89,732 104 1,629 376,541
Acquisitions - 8 - 202 - 6,481 6,691
Disposals - - (426) (582) - - (1,008)
Transfers between categories (2,000} 3,093 2,653 3,116 - (6,862) -
Transfer from accumulated depreciation
following revaluation - (167} (86) - - - (253)
Movements in foreign exchange - - - (21} - - 21
Revaluation surplus/(deficit} 13,510 1,554 2,729 - - - 17,793
Balance at 31 December 2014 102,750 175,426 27,768 92,447 104 1,248 399,743
Depreciation and impaimment losses
Balance at 1 January 2013 - (10,530} (2.301) (65,080) (121} - (78,032}
Depreciation charge for the year - {1,960) (336) {(4,222) {4} - (6,522}
Disposals - - - 516 40 - 556
Transfers between categories - (24) (31) 55 - - -
Transfer accumulated deprecialion against
cost following revaluation - -1,078 21 - - - 1,099
Movements in foreign exchange - - - 74 3 - 77
Balance at 31 December 2013 - (11,436) (2,647) (68,657) (82) - (82,822
Balance at 1 January 2014 - (11,436) (2,647} (68,657) (82) - (82,822)
Depreciation charge for the year - (3,669) (365) (5,013} 4 - (9,051}
Disposals - 1 426 578 - - 1,005
Transfers between categories - - - - - - -
Transfer accumulated depreciation against
cost following revaluation - 167 86 - - - 253
Movements in foreign exchange - - - 20 - - 20
Balance at 31 December 2014 - {14,937) {2,500) {73,072) (86) - {90,595)
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2013 93,871 148,821 19,844 21,083 26 890 284,535
At 31 December 2013 91,240 159,502 20,251 21,075 22 1,629 293,719
At 1 January 2014 91,240 159,502 20,251 21,075 22 1,629 253,719
At 31 December 2014 102,750 160,489 25,268 18,375 18 1,248 309,148
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10. Property, plant and equipment - continued
Parent
Plant,
Leasehold Equipment, Work
Freehold Freehold Land and Fixtures Motor In
Dollars In Thousands Land Buildings Buildings and Fittings  Vehicles  Progress Total
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2013 59,106 82,076 - 43,804 58 297 185,341
Acquisitions - - - - - 1,299
Disposals - - - {(104) - -
Transfers between categories - 713 - 587 - (1,300)
Transfer from accumulated depreciation - (230} - - - -
Revaluation surplus/{deficit) (860) 1,559 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 58,246 84,118 - 44,287 58 296 187,005
Balance at 1 January 2014 58,246 84,118 - 44,287 58 206 187,005
Acquisitions - - - - - 1,617
Disposals - - - (96) - -
Transfers between categories (2,000) 244 2,000 738 - {982)
Transfer from accumulated depreciation - (168) - - - -
Revaluation surplus/{deficit) 13,510 1,554 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 69,756 85,748 2,000 44,929 58 931 203,422
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2013 - (7,055} - {33,690) (32} - @077
Depreciation charge for the year - (1.061) - (1,753) (4} - {2,818)
Disposals - - - 104 - - 104
Transfer accumulated depreciation against
cost following revaluation - 230 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 - {7,886) - (35,339) (36) - {43,261)
Balance at 1 January 2014 - (7,886) - (35,339) (36) - (43,261)
Depreciation charge for the year - (2,679) - {2,396) (4) - (5,079)
Disposals - - - 95 - -
Transfer accumulated depreciation against
cost following revaluation - 168 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 - (10,397) - (37,840) {40) - (48,077)
Canrying amounts
At 1 January 2013 59,106 75,021 - 10,114 26 297 144,564
At 31 December 2013 58,246 76,232 - 8,948 22 296 143,744
At 1 January 2014 58,246 76,232 - 8,948 22 296 143,744
At 31 December 2014 69,756 75,351 2,000 7,289 18 931 155,345

The Directors consider the value of the hotel assets with a net book value of $309.15 million (2013: $293.72 million) to be within a
range of $309.15 to $323.20 million (2013: $293.72 to $310.47 million). This is substantiated by valuations completed by Bower
Valuations Limited, registered valuers, in December 2012, 2013 and 2014, in respect of hotel assets in Millennium & Copthorne
Hotels New Zealand Limited of $187.32 million (2013: $174.59 million) and in respect of holel assets in Quantum Limited of
$135.88 million {2013: $135.88 million).

During 2014 three {2013: seven) of the Group’s freehold and leasehold hotel properties were subject to an external professional
valuation by Bower Valuations Limited, registered valuers, on a highest and best use basis. Based on these vaiuations and in
accordance with lthe Group's accounting policies the respective properties’ land and buildings were revalued to their fair value. A
total of $17.79 million was added to (2013: $10.31 million) the carrying values of land and buildings.

During 2014 two {2013: one} of the Parent's freehold and leasehold hotel properties were subject to an external professional
valuation by Bower Valuations Limited, registered valuers, on a highest and best use basis. Based on this valuation and in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies the respective properties’ land and buildings were revalued to their fair value. A
total of $15.06 million was added to the carrying values of land and buildings (2013: $0.70 million}.
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10. Property, plant and equipment - continued

The Group's fair value of hotel properties as determined by independent valuers is categorised as Level 3 based on the inputs to
the valuation methodology. The basis of the valuation is the net present value of the future earnings of the assets. The major
unobservable inputs and assumptions that are used in the valuation model that require judgement include forecasts of the future
earnings, projected operational and maintenance expenditure profiles and discount rates (internal rate of return}. The estimated
fair value would increase or (decrease) if: forecast future earnings were higher / {lower); projected operational and maintenance
expenditures were (higher) / lower; and the discount rates were (higher) / lower.

The Directors consider the net book value of the hotels not valued by independent valuers in 2014 1o approximate their fair value
as at 31 December 2014,

During the year, the Group's hotels which were not subject to external professional valuations were tested for impairment. Based
on these tests no value (2013: $nil) has been deducted from the carrying value of freehold land and buildings. The testing for
impairment requires management to estimate future cash flows to be generated by the cash generating units and is categorised as
Level 3 based on the inputs to the impairment models. The major unchservable inputs that management use that require judgement
in estimating future cash flows inciude expected rate of growth in revenue and costs, market segment mix, occupancy, average
room rates expected to be achieved and the appropriate discount rate to apply when discounting future cash flows. Average annual
growth rates appropriate to the hotels range from 1.1% to 13.1% (2013: 0.4% to 6.9%) over the five years projection. Pre-lax
discount rates ranging between 8.25% and 13.50% (2013: 8.50% to 14.00%) were applied to the future cash flows of the individual
hotels based on the specific circumstances of the property.

Had the property, plant and equipment been camied under the cost model, the following carrying values would have been
recognised:

Group
Plant,
Leasehold Equipment, Work
Freehold Freehold Land and Fixtures Motor In
Dollars fn Thousands Land Buildings Buildings and Fittings  Vehicles  Progress Total
Cost less accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 40,659 81,329 17,638 21,083 26 890 161,625
Al 31 December 2013 40,659 79,837 17,279 21,075 22 1,629 160,501
At 1 January 2014 40,659 79,837 17,279 21,075 22 1,629 160,501
At 31 December 2014 38,659 79,268 18,567 19,375 18 1,248 158,135
Parent
Plant,
Leasehold  Equipment, Work
Freehold Freehold Land and Fixtures Motor In

Doflars in Thousands Land Buildings  Buildings  and Fittings Vehicles _ Progress Total
Cost less accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 34,579 39,021 - 10,114 26 297 84,037
Al 31 December 2013 34,579 38,673 - 8,948 22 296 82,518
At 1 January 2014 34,579 38,673 - 8,948 22 296 82,518
At 31 December 2014 32,579 36,238 2,000 7,289 18 931 79,055
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10. Property, plant and equipment - continued

Canterbury Earthquake

The Canterbury region and Christchurch cily suffered two earthquakes on 4 September 2010 and 22 February 2011. At that time
the Group operated three hotels in the Christchurch CBD; Millennium Hotel Christchurch (leased); Copthorne Hotel Christchurch
Central {owned); and Copthorne Hotel Christchurch City (leased).

The Millennium Hotel Christchurch suffered minor damage from the 4 September 2010 earthquake and remained open for
business. The 22 February 2011 earthquake further damaged Lhe hotel and it is now closed down for the required engineering
assessment and repair. The Group is insured for building damage.

The Copthorne Hotel Christchurch Central suffered minor damage from the 4 September 2010 earthquake and remained open for
business. The 22 February 2011 earthquake severely damaged the hotel after which the insurers assessed that the holel was
uneconomic to repair. The material damage claim for Copthorne Hotel Central Christchurch was settied with the insurers on 22
November 2012. The hotel was demolished in October 2013. In relation to the land at Copthorne Holel Central Christchurch, the
Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Authority (CERA) had earmarked the land as part of a performing arts precinct in its Christchurch
rebutiding blueprint. CERA has lifted the designation and there is no encumbrance on the land.

The Copthorne Hotel Christchurch City was demolished, the lease terminated and a settlement was reached with the landlord and
insurers in regards to the property in November 2011,

11. Development properties
Group - Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Development land 96,965 86,633 - -
Residential development 50,425 52,577 - -
147,390 138,210 - -
Less expected 1o settle within one year (24,652) (33,178) - -
122,738 106,032 - -
Development land recognised in cost of sales 21,839 17,997 - -

Development land is camied at the lower of cost and net realisable value. No interest (2013: $nil) has been capitalised during the
year. The value of development land held at 31 December 2014 was determined by an independent registered valuer, DM
Koomen SPINZ, of Extensor Advisory Limited as $205.97 million (20113: $177.51 million}.

The fair value of development property as determined by Lhe independent valuer Is categorised as Level 3 based on the inputs to
the valuation methodology. The basis of the valuation is the hypothetical subdivision approach andfor block land sales
comparisons to derive the residual block land values. The major unobservable inputs that are used in the valuation model that
require judgement include the individual section prices, allowances for profit and risk, projected completion and sell down periods
and interest rates during the holding period. The estimated fair value would increase or {decrease) if: the individual section prices
were higher / {iower); the allowances for profit were higher / (lower); the allowances for risk were lower / (higher); the projected
completion and sell down periods were shaorter / (longer); and the interest rate during the holding period was lower / (higher}.

Residential development at balance date consists of the residential development known as Zenith Residences in Sydney, Australia.
The value of Zenith Residences held at 31 December 2014 was delermined by L Rogers AAPI of Landmark White (Sydney) Pty Ltd
{2013: R Laoulach AAPI of Landmark White (Sydney} Pty Ltd), registered valuers as $64.86 million {A$62.00 million) (2013: $71.47
million {A$65.58 million)).

The fair value of the residential development as determined by the independent valuer is categorised as Level 3 based on the
inputs 1o the valuation methodology. The basis of the valuation is gross realisalions ‘as is’ assuming individual sales of unsold
units. The major unobservable inputs and assumptions that are used in the valuation model that require judgement include the
interest rates, consumer confidence, unemployment rate and residential unit demand. The estimated fair value would increase or
(decrease) if: the interest rates were lower / {higher); the consumer confidence was optimistic / {pessimistic); the unemployment
rate was lower / {higher); the residential unit demand was stronger / (weaker).
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12. Intangible assets

Goodwill of $2.82 million (2013: $2.82 million) in the Group and Parent is attributed to the Copthorne Hotel Auckland HarbourCity
cash generating unit.

Leasehold interests held by the Group of $23.19 million and Parent of $0.39 million are fully amortised and/or impaired,

Impaiment

Goodwill I tested for impairment each year and intangibles are tested for impairment when there is an indicator of impairment.
Goodwill is assessed for impairment by testing the value in use of the hotel to which the goodwill is allocated. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment by testing the value in use of the hotel 1o which the asset is allocated.

VWhen testing the value in use of & hotel a discounted cash flow model is used. The fulure cash flows are projected over six years
based on budgets and forecasts at growth rales appropriate to the business. A pre-tax discount rate of 8.50% (2013: 8.50%) was
applied to the future cash flows. Average annual revenue growth of 2.1% (2013: 2.2%) was assumed over the six years projection.

In the 2014 review of goodwill no impairment {2013: nil) was found In respect of Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbourclty.

13. Investment in associates

The Group's share of loss of its assoclate, First Sponsor Group Limited (“FSGL”} for the year was $0.37 million (2013: $9.75
million share of profit of First Sponsor Capital Limited (“FSCL™). FSGL and its subsidiaries are principally involved in investment
holding, property development and sales, hotel operations, property investments and real estate financing in China.

Prestons Road Limited has no revenue or expenses, therefore the Group's share of profit of its associate was nil {2013: nil).
During the year, the Group maintained its 33.33% economic interest in Prestons Road Limited. The principal activity of Prestons
Road Limited is as service provider to the Group's subsidiary, CDL Land New Zealand Limited, and in this regard, it is charged
with engaging suitably qualified consultants in fields such as geotechnical engineering, resource management compliance,
subdivision of land, legal and regulatory compliance and related issues to enable the Group to develop its tand at Prestons Road
in Christchurch.

Summary financial information for associates, not adjusted for the percentage ownership held by the Group:

Group
2014 2013
Prestons Road Flrst Sponsor Capital Prestons Road

Dollars in Thousands Limited Limited Limited
Current assets 1,818 750,564 207
Non-current assets - 176,868 -
Current liabilities {1.812) (217,384) (201)
Non-current liabilities - {159,312)

Non-controlling interests - {5,585) -
Net assets {100%) ] 545,151 6
Group interests 33.33% 34.00% 33.33%
Group’s interest of net assets 2 185,329 2
Carrying amount in associates 2 185,329 2
Revenues - 153,855 -
Profit (100%) - 28,678 -
Other comprehensive income (“OCi"} {100%) - 31,107 -
Group interests 33.33% 34.00% 33.33%
Group's share of {losses)/profits - 9,751 -
Group's share of OCI - 10,575 -
Group's share of profits and OCl - 20,326 -

During the year, the Group disposed of its investments in First Sponsor Capital Limited.
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13. Investment in associates - continued
Movements in the camying value of associates:
Group Parent

First Sponsor Group Ltd First Sponsor Group Ltd
Doflars In Thousands Note 2014 i 2013 2014 [ 2013
Balance at 1 January 185,329 128,057 -
Amalgamation of subsidiary 13(a) - - 155,116
Disposal of associate held by subsidiary 13 (b} (2,470) - -
Distribution of shares from subsidiary 13(b) - - 3912
Investment in associate 13 (c) 58,510 40,303 58,510
Retum of surplus capital 13(d) (4,309) - (4,309)
Movement in foreign exchange (7.,046) (3.254) -
Share of post acquisition movement in foreign
exchange reserves for the year (7,322) 10,569 -
Share of post acquisition capital reserves for the
year (933) 6 -
Share of (loss)/profit for the year {370) 9,751 -
Dilution gain/(loss} 493 (103) -
Disposal of assoclate under distribution in specie 13 (e).(f) (221,565) - (212,912)
Reclassification to asset held for sale 13 (e), 18 (317) - (317)
Balance at 31 December - 185,329 -

Reorganisation of investments in associates before the scheme of armangement
As preparation for the implementation of the scheme of arrangements, the Company consolidated its investments held by its
subsidiaries, by way of capital reorganisation and transfer of the investments from its subsidiaries.

13 (a)

13 (b)

On 21 March 2014, MCHNZ Investments Limited (100% owned subsidiary of the Company) amalgamated with the
Company and the existing 119,299,296 FSCL preference shares and 245 FSCL ordinary shares held by MCHNZ
Investments Limited were transferred to the Company, being the continuing entity.

On 21 March 2014, KIN Holdings Limited (61.30% owned subsidiary of the Company) carried out a capital reduction and
a distribution in specie exercise whereby its entire FSCL shares held were distributed to Tal Tak Asia Properties Pte
Limited (non-controlling interest of 38.70%: 2,102,013 preference shares at fair value of $2.47 million) and the Company
(61.30%: 3,329,545 preference shares). The Company recorded the transfer of 3,329,545 shares at fair value of $3.91
million.

Investment in associate

13{c)

On 11 February 2014 the Company received notice from FSCL of a capital call of SG$190.00 million in March 2014 to
fund further expansion of its development properties in Chengdu, Sichuan Province, China. The Company increased its
investments by providing additional capital of $58.51 million ($G$63.50 million) on 26 March 2014 and was issued with
50,134,440 preference shares.

in September 2013, the Group increased its investment in FSCL by providing additional capital of US$33.42 milllon
{NZ$40.30 million at the then prevailing exchange rate) as the Group's share of the US$100.00 million capital call made
by FSCL. The additional capital was provided to enable FSCL to fund further development of its properties in Chengdu,
Sichuan Province, China.

Reorganisation of FSCL before the |PO

13 (d)

As part of the capital reorganisation of FSGL before its Initial Public Offer {IPQ), 245 ordinary shares and 172,763,281
preference shares held by the Company in FSCL were exchanged for 171,561,263 shares in FSGL on 31 March 2014,
As a resuit surplus capital of $4.31 million was retumed from FSCL. The Company ended up with 31.42% Interests in
FSGL at 31 March 2014,

Scheme of amangement and the distribution in specie

13(e) Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement which was approved by the shareholders of the Compary on 19 June 2014, the
cancellation of capital and the distribution in specie of the FSGL. shares tock effect on 17 July 2014. The implementation
of the scheme resulted in:

Total value of
Class of Number of shares Total value of Number of Fair FSGL shares
shares cancelled 20 day VWAP | shares cancelled | FSGL shares value distributed
($°000) distributed ($'000)

Ordinary 243,789,696 $0.68 $165,777 114,210,355 $1.448 $165,445

Redeemable

preference 121,894,823 $0.68 $32,889 57,105,438 $1.448 $82,723

365,684,519 $248,666 171,315,793 $248,168

Treasury

stock 230,080 $0.68 $156 - - -

365,914,559 $248,822 171,315,783 $248,168

The cancellation ratio and the distribution ratio are the same for both ordinary and preference shares. For every 1,000
shares, 698 shares were cancelled and 327 FSGL shares were distributed.
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13

Investment in associates - continued

243,789,696 ordinary shares amounting to $165.78 million (at 20 day volume welghted average price (VWAP) of $0.68
cents per ordinary share) were cancelled in exchange for 114,210,355 FSGL shares amounting to $165.45 million (at the
fair value of $1,448 cents per share {computed at SG$1.55 at foreign exchange rate of 1.07));

121,894,823 redeemable preference shares amounting to $82.89 million {at 20 day volume weighted average price of
$0.68 cents per ordinary share) were cancelled in exchange for 57,105,438 FSGL shares amounting to $82.72 million at
the fair value of $1.448 cents per share (computed at $G$1.55 at foreign exchange rate of 1.07);

230,080 repurchased ordinary shares held as treasury stock were cancelled amounting to $0.16 miliion {at 20 day volume
weighted average price of $0.68 cents per ordinary share). No FSGL shares were exchanged for the treasury stock
cancelled; and

245,470 FSGL shares were left undistributed due to the rounding of the approved cancellation and distribution ratios. The

remaining shares were then reclassified to assets held for sale.
«  The distribution has been accounted for in accordance to IFRIC 17 - Distributions of non-cash assets to owners.

Galn on the distribution in specie

13(f) The distribution of the FSGL shares at fair value over the equity accounted book value at the Group level resulted in a
gain on distribution in specie which was recogrised Iin the profil and loss. The cumulative exchange movements which

were recognised in the Other Comprehensi
In the case of the Company, the accounting standards requi

ve Income were reclassified to the profit and loss and recognised in the gain.
ire the investments in FSGL 1o be held at cost and this

resulted in a higher gain on distribution in specie to be recognised in the profit and loss. The gains on distribution are

analysed as follow:

Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands Nole 2014 2014
Total value of the distribution 13 (e) 248,666 248,666
Less book value of FSGL shares distributed *(221,565) *(212,912)
Add dilution gain in FSGL 493 -
Less reclassification of cumulative exchange movements from exchange
translation reserves 5 {9,951) -
Gain on distribution in specie 2 17,643 35,754
* at equity accounted value, ** alcost.
14, Cash and cash equivalents
Group Parent
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 | 2013 2014 | 2013
Cash 4,875 3,360 193 87
Term deposits 19,147 79,856 - 22,338
Bank overdrafts - {1,131) - -
24,022 82,085 193 22 425
15. Trade and other receivables
Group Parent
Doliars In Thousands 2014 [ 2013 2014 | 2013
Trade receivables 6,014 4,472 2,978 2407
Less provision for doubtful debts (18) (30) (8) (14)
Insurance receivables 309 1,017 309 688
Other tade receivables and prepayments 10,544 8,058 1,506 814
16,849 13,517 4,787 3,895
16. Inventories
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 ] 2013 2014 | 2013
Consumables 508 600 197 279
Finished goods 747 779 67 100
1,256 1,379 264 379
Inventory recognised in cost of sales 5,869 5,786 2,272 2,370
17. Current tax assets and liabilities
Group Parent
Doltars In Thousands 2014 | 2013 2014 2013
Income tax receivabie - 1,087 782 -
Income tax payable {896) - - {125)

The current tax liability represents the amount of income taxes payable in respect of current and prior periods.
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18. Assets heid for sale
Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands Note 2014 | 2013 2014 | 2013
First Sponsor Group Limited shares 13 (&) 317 ' - 317 -
Less provision for impairment {19) - {19) -
Carrying value 298 - 298 -

Due to the rounding which was part of the approved cancellation and distribution ratios, 245,470 First Sponsor Group Limited

shares were left undistributed. The remaining shares were therefore reclas

sale with the intention to sell.

sified fiom Investments in associates to assets held for

The remalning shares were reclassified at equity accounted value of $317.000. At balance date, the market price of the shares was
$1.21 (SG$1.25) which converted to $298,000. As a result a provision of $15,000 was booked to refiect the impairment.

19. interest-bearing loans and bormowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more
information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate and foreign cumrency risk, see nole 23.

Group
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Interest Facility Carrying Carrying
Dollars in Thousands Currency Rate Maturity Total FaceValue | Amount | FaceValue | Amount
Revolving credit NZD 4.390% 12,500 { -~ 12,500 12,500 12,500
Revolving credit NZD 4.400% 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Revolving credit NZD 4.430% 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Revolving credit NZD 3.200% - - 3,843 3,843
Revolving credit NZD 4.390% 17,000 17,000 10,000 10,000
Revolving credit NZD 3.460% - - 5,000 5,000
Revolving credit NZD 3.540% - - 5,000 5,000
Revolving credit NZD 4.420% 8,500 9,500 22,035 22,035
Overdraft NZD 4,100% 6,921 6,921 - -
TOTAL 31 Jan 2017 105,000 68,421 68,421 80,878 80,878
Current 6,921 6,921 - -
Non-current 61,500 61,500 80,878 80,878

Parent
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Interest Facllity Carrying Carrying
Dolfars in Thousands Currency Rate Maturity Total Face Value | Amount Face Value | Amount
Revolving credit NZD 4.390% 17,000 17,000 10,000 10,000
Revolving credit NZD 3.460% - - 5,000 5,000
Revolving credit NZD 3.540% - - 5,000 5,000
Revolving credit NZD 4.420% 9,500 9,500 22,035 22,035
Overdraft NZD 4,100% 3,572 3,572 - -
TOTAL 31 Jan 2017 50,000 30,072 30,072 42,035 42,035
Current 3,572 3,572 - -
Nen-current 26,500 26,500 42,035 42,035
Terms and debt repayment schedule
The bank loans are secured over hote! properties with a carrying amount of $275.68 million (2013: $261.74 million) - refer to note
10. The bank loans have no fixed term of repayment before maturity. The Group and Parent Company facilities mature on k)l
January 2017.
20. Provisions

(Group Parent
Earthquake FF&E and Site Earthquake

Dolfars In Thousands provisions Restoration provisions FF&E
Balance at 1 January 2013 2,243 676 2,243 676
Provisions made during the year - 66 - 65
Balance at 31 December 2013 2,243 742 2,243 742
Non-current - 742 - 742
Current 2,243 - 2,243 -
Balance at 1 January 2014 2,243 742 2,243 742
Provisions made during the year - 15 - 15
Balance at 31 December 2014 2,243 757 2,243 757
Nor-current - - - -
Current 2,243 757 2.243 757
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20. Provisions - continued

An obligation exists under certain leases o restore various aspects for the effect of the Group's operations and to maintain hotel

equipment in running order. Provisions in respect of the obligations h:

As at 31 December 2014, the earthquake provisions of $2.24 million relate to Millennium Hotel Christchurch.

21, Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

ave been recognised in accordance 1o the terms of the lease.

Group
Assels Liabilties Net
Doliars In Thousands 2014 | 2013 2014 [ 2013 2014 | 2013
Property, plant and equipment - - 45,571 46,078 45,571 46,078
Development properties (1,103) (1,084} - - (1,103) (1,084}
Provisions (2,248) (1,406) - - (2,248) {1,408)
Employee benefits (735) {657) - - (735) (657)
Trade and other payables (472) (726} - - 472) (726)
Net investment in foreign operations - - 852 1,380 852 1,380
Net tax (assets) / liabilities (4,558) {3,873} 46,423 47,458 41,865 43,585
Parent
Assets Liabilities Net
Doliars In Thousands 2014 | 2013 2014 [ 2013 2014 | 2013
Property, plant and equipment - - 20,889 21,193 20,889 21,193
Provisions {693) (691) - - (693) {691)
Employee benefits - - - - - -
Trade and other payables (151) (295) - - {151) {295)
Net tax {assets) / liabilities (844) (986) 20,889 21,193 20,045 20,207
Movement in deferred tax balances during the year
Group
Balance Recognised in Recognised in Balance
Dollars In Thousands 1Jan 13 income equity 31 Dec13
Property, plant and equipment 42481 {132) 3,729 46,078
Development properties (1,197) {86) 199 {1,084)
Provisions {990} (452) 36 (1,406)
Employee benefits (636) (65) 44 (657)
Trade and other payables (1,962} 1,235 1 (726)
Net iInvestment in foreign operations 3,475 - (2,095 1,380
41,171 500 1,914 43,585
Group
Balance Recognised in Recognised in Balance
Doliars In Thousands 1 dan 14 income equity 31 Dec 14
Property, plant and equipment 46,078 (1,105) 600 45,573
Development properties (1,084) (70) 51 {1,103}
Provisions (1,4086) (904) 60 {2,250)
Empioyee benefits (657) {78) - (735)
Trade and other payables (726) 254 1 (471}
Net investment in foreign operations 1,380 - (529 851
43,585 (1,803) 183 41,865
Movement in deferred tax balances during the year
Parent
Balance Recognised in Recognised in Balance
Doflars In Thousands 1.Jan 13 income equity 31Dec 13
Property, plant and equipment 20,780 {33) 435 21,193
Provisions (669) (22) - (691)
Trade and oiher payables (1,369) 1,074 - (295)
18,752 1,019 436 20,207
Parent
Balance Recognised in Recognised in Balance
Doflars In Thousands 1Jan 14 income equity 31 Dec 14
Property, plant and equiprment 21,193 (740) 4356 20,889
Provisions (691) (2) - (693)
Trade and other payables (295) 144 - {151)
20,207 {598) 436 20,045
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22, Trade and other payables
(Group Parent

Dollars In Thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Trade payables 1,253 1,513 421 674
insurance settlements received in advance - 499 - 499
Employee entitiements 2,497 2,256 - -
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 17.217 10,216 3,289 1,922

20,967 14,484 3,710 3,095

23, Financial instruments

The Group only holds non-derivative financial instruments which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade receivables due from related parties, related party advances, shares in listed entities, secured bank loans, trade and other
payables and trade payables due to related parties.

Exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the Group's ability to meet its contractual obligations. The Group evaluales its liquidity requirements on an
ongoing basis. In general, the Group generates sufficlent cash flows from its operating activities to meet its obligations arising from
its financial hiabilities. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.

Credit risk : :
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial
assets. There are no significant aged debtors which have not been fully provided for.

Investments are allowed only in short-term financial instruments and only with counterparties approved by the Board, such that the
exposure 1o a single counterparty is minimised.

At balance date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in Australia is $1.86 million (2013: $0.17 million), All other credit risk exposure relates to New
Zealand.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

In managing interest rate risks the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group's earnings with an
ongoing review of its exposure to changes in interest rates on its borrowings, the maturity profite of the debt, and the cash flows of
the underlying debt. The Group maintains its borrowings at fixed rates on short term which gives the Group flexdbility in the context
of the economic climate, business cycle, loan covenants, cash flows, and cash balances.

An increase of 1.0% in interest rates would have Increased profit before tax for the Group in the current period by $0.27 million
{2013: $0.10 million reduction), assuming all other variables remained constant. For the Parent this would have increased profit
before tax by $0.16 million (2013: $0.48 million reduction}, assumning all other variables remained constant.

Effective interest and re-pricing analysis
In respect of income-eaming financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities the following table indicates their effective
interest rates at the balance date and the periods in which they re-price. ’

Group 2014 2013
Effective 6 months 6to 12 Effective 6 months 6to 12
Dollars In Thousands Note inerest rate Total or less months interest rate Total or less months
Interest bearing cash & 0.10% to 1.20% to
cash equivalents * 14 4.25% 23,955 23,955 - 4.29% 83,155 80,655 2,500
Short term bank deposilts 3.07%to
* 4.82% 83,572 71,072 12,500 - - - -
4.39% to i 3.20%to
Secured bank loans * 19 4.43% (61,500) (61,500) - 3.54% (80,878} (80,878) -
Bank overdrafts * 14,19 4.10% (6,.921) (6,921} - 3.00% {1,131} (1,131) -
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23. Financial instruments - continued

Effective interest and re-pricing analysis - continued

Parent 2014 2013
Effective 6 months 6to 12 Effective 6 months 6to 12
Dollars In Thousands Note interest rate Total orless months interest rate Total or less months
Interest bearing cash & 1.20% to
cash equivalents * 14 3.50% 166 166 - 4.29% 22,405 22,405
Short term bank deposits 4.52%to
* 4.75% 48,500 36,000 12,500 - - -
4.39%to 3.20%to
Secured bank loans * 19 4.42% (26.500) (26,500) - 3.54% {42,035) {42,035)
Bank overdrafts 18 410% (3,572) {3,572) - - - -

* These assels / {liabilities) bear interest at a fixed rate.

(i} Forelgn currency risk .

The Group owns 61.30% of KIN Holdings Limited and 0.04% (2013: 34.00%} of First Sponsor Group Limited. Substantially all the
operations of these subsidiary groups and assets held for sale are denominated in foreign currencies. In the comparative period the
asset held for sale was classified as an investment in associate. The foreign currencies giving rise to this risk are Australian Dollars
and Singapore Dollars. The Group has determined that the primary risk affects the carrying values of the net investments in its
foreign operations with the currency movements being recognised in the foreign cumrency translation reserves. The Group has not
taken any measurements to manage this risk.

The Group is not exposed to any other foreign currency risks.

Capital management

The Group's capital includes share capital and retained earnings.

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The impact of the level of capilal on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Group
recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital requirements.

The allocation of capital is, to a large extent, driven by optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated.

The Group’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors. There were
no changes in the Group’s capital management policies during the year.

Fair values
The fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Group Carrying Canrying
amount Fair value amount Falr value

Dollars In Thousands Note 2014 2014 2013 2013
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Cash and cash equivalents 14 24,022 24,022 82,085 82,085
Short term bank deposits 83,572 83,572 - -
Trade and other receivables 15 16,849 16,849 13,517 13,517
OTHER LIABILITIES
Secured bank loans and overdrafts 19 (68,421) (68,421) (80,878) (80,878)
Trade and other payables 22 (20,967) (20,967) {14,484) (14,484)
Trade payables due to related parties 27 (504) (504) (537) (537)
Loans due to related parties 27 - - (9,500} (9,500)

34,551 34,551 (9,797) (9,797}
Unrecognised (losses) / gains - -
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23. Financlal instruments - continued

Fair values - continued

Parent Camying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

Dollars In Thousands Note 2014 2014 2013 2013
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Cash and cash equivalents 14 193 193 22,425 22,425
Short term bank deposits 48,500 48,500 - -
Trade and other receivables 15 4,787 4,787 3,885 3,895
Trade receivables due from related parties 27 4,302 4,302 12,158 12,158
Loans due from related parties 27 3,900 3,900 88,802 88,802
OTHER LIABILITIES
Secured bank loans and overdrafts 15 (30,072) (30,072) (42,035) (42,035)
Trade and other payables 22 (3.710) (3,710) (3,095) (3,095)
Trade payables due to related parties 27 (504) (504) {537) (537)
Loans due to related parties 27 - - (9,500) {9,500)

27,396 27,396 72,113 72,113
Unrecognised (losses) / gains - -

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected

in the table:

{a) Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and related party balances. The camying amounts for these balances

approximate their fair value because of the short maturities of these items.

{b) Borrowings. The carrying amounts for the borrowings represent their fair values because the interest rates are reset to market

periodically, every 1to 2 months.
24. Operating leases

Leases as lessee

The minimum amount payable under non-cancellable operating lease rentals are as follows:

Group Parent
Dollars In Thousands 2014 I 2013 2014 | 2013
Less than one year 972 977 94 94
Between one and five years 3,665 3,425 376 376
More than five years 1,711 3,040 2 564
6,348 7,442 472 1,034

The Group leases a number of hotels and motor vehicles under operating leases. The hotel leases typically run for a period of
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments are increased regularly to reflect market rentals. Typically
these leases include a base rent plus a performance related element which becomes payable if revenue exceeds a specified level,

During the year ended 31 December 2014, $2.14 million was recognised as an expense in the income statement In respect of
operating leases (2013: $1.95 million). Operating lease expenses for the Parent were $0.09 million in 2014 (2013: $0.09 million).

25. Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for capital expenditure {$1.91 million) and
development expenditure ($20.07 million) totalling $21.98 million (2013: $5.99 million capital expenditure and $17.50 million
development expenditure).

As at 31 December 2014, the Parent had entered into contractual commitments for capital expenditure totalling $1.60 million {2013:
$1.08 million}.

268. Related parties

Identity of related parties
The Group has a related party relationship with its parent, subsidiaries {see note 27), associates and with its directors and
executive officers.

Transactions with key managemernit personnel

Directors of the Company and their immediate relatives controt 0.71% (2013: 0.71%) of the voting shares of the Company. Loans to
directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to $nil (2013: $nil). Key management personnel include the Board and
the Executive Team.
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28. Related partles - continued

Total remuneration for key management personnel

Group Parent
Dolfars In Thousands 2014 i 2013 2014 | 2013
Non-executive directors 265 269 116 116
Executive director 535 546 535 546
Executive officers 703 588 703 588
1,503 1,403 1,354 1,250

Non-executive directors receive director's fees only. Executive director and executive officers receive short-term employee benefits
which include a base salary and an incentive plan. They do not receive remuneration or any other benefits as a director of the
Parent Company or its subsidiaries. Directors’ fees are included in “administration expenses® (see note 3) and remuneration for
executive director and executive officers are included in “personnel expenses” (see note 4).

27, Group entities

Control of the Group

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limiled is a 75.20% (2013: 70.22%)} owned subsidiary of CDL Hotels Holdings New
Zealand Limited which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc in the United Kingdom. The ultimate
parent company is Hong Leong Investment Holdings Ple Ltd in Singapore.

Al balance date there were related party advances owing from/(owing to} the following related companies:

) Group

Doflars In Thousands Nature of balance 2014 ] 2013

Trade payables due to related parties

Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc Recharge of expenses (504) (535)

CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited Recharge of expenses - {2)
‘ (504) {537)

Loans due to related parties

CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited Inter-company loan - (9,500

- {9,500)

No debts with related parties were written off or forgiven during the year. No interest was charged on these advances during 2014
and 2013. There are no set repayment terms. During this period costs amounting to $250,000 (2013: $250,000) have been
recorded in the income statement (n respect of fees payable to Millennium & Copthorne Intemational Limited for the provision of
management and marketing support.

The loan due to CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited was repaid on 17 March 2014. The interest rates were fixed and range
between 2.50% and 3.06% (2013: 3.14%).

During the year consulting fees of $41,000 (2013: $49,000) were paid to Bobb Management Pty Ltd of which Mr. R Bobb (Director)
is a shareholder and director.

Parent
At balance date there were related party advances owing from/(owing to} the following related companies:
Parent
Dollars In Thousands Nature of balance 2014 | 2013
Trade receivables due from related parties
Context Securities Ltd Prepaid expenses 3,412 3,516
MCHNZ Investments Lid Inter-company account - 7,991
‘Quantum Ltd Management fees 830 651
4,302 12,158
Loans receivable due from related parties
Context Securities Limited Inter-company ioan 3,900 4,600
MCHNZ investments Ltd Inter-company loan - 84,202
3,900 88,802
Trade payables due o related parties
Millennium & Copthome Holels plc Recharge of expenses {504) {535)
CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Ltd Recharge of expenses - [
(504) {537)
Loans due to related parties
CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Ltd Inter-company loan - {9,500)
- {9,500)

At balance date, there were interest bearing unsecured inter-company advances owing from Context Securities Limited of $3.90
million (2013: $4.60 million). The loan to MCHNZ Investments Limited of $84.20 million was repaid on 21 March 2014. Net interest
on advances of $210,000 (2013: $205,000} was charged to Context Securities Limited during the year and $0.76 million (2013:
$2.23 million) was charged o MCHNZ Investments up to repayment date. The average interest rate charged during the year to
Context Securities Limited was 4.97% (2013: 4.40%) and for MCHNZ Investments Limited it was 4.12% (2013: 4.10%). Both loans
are repayable on demand.

The loan due to CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited was repaid on 17 March 2014. The interest rates were fixed and range
between 2.50% and 3.06% (2013: 3.14%}).
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27. Group entities - continued

No debts with related parties were written off or forgiven during the year. No interest was charged on trade receivables and trade
payable balances during 2013 and 2014.

During the year dividend income of $3.69 million (2013: $3.05 million) was received from CDL Investments New Zealand Limited.
The dividends received from CDL Investments New Zealand Limited were taken in cash in the cumrent period (2013: 5,213,206
shares issued at $0.5854 per share under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.)

Management fees of $845,000 (2013: $799,000) were charged to Quantum Limited during the year.
Associate companies .

The assaciate companies included in the financial statements of Millennium & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited as at 31
December 2014 are:

Principal Holding % by CDL Land Holding % by CDL Land New

Principal Activity Place of New Zealand Limited Zealand Limited
Business 2014 2013
Prestons Road Limited Service provider NZ 33.33 33.33

Prestons Road Limited has a 31 March balance date. No adjustment is made for the difference in balance date of Prestons Road
Limited, because it has no revenue or profits to report.

Subsldiary companies
The principal subsidiary companies of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited included in the consolidation as at k)|
December 2014 are:

Principal Group Group
Principal Activity Place of Holding % Holding %
Business 2014 2013

Context Securities Limited Investment Holding NZ 100.00 100.00
MCHNZ Investments Limited (amalgamated with the Investment Holding NZ nfa 100.00
Parent}
Miliennium & Copthome Hotels Limited Dormant NZ 100.00 100.00
All Seasons Hotels & Resorts Limited Dormant NZ 100.00 100.00
Copthorne Hotel & Resort Bay of Islands Joint Hotel Operations NZ 49.00 49.00
Venture
Quantum Limited Holding Company NZ 100.00 70.00
100% owned subsidiaries of Quantum Limited are:
QINZ Holdings (New Zealand) Limited Holding Company NZ
Kingsgate Hotels and Resorts Limited Domant/Franchise Holder NZ
Hospitality Group Limited Holding Company NZ
100% owned subsidiaries of Hospitality Group
Limited are:
Hospitality Leases Limited Lessee Company/Hotel NZ

Operations
QINZ Anzac Avenue Limited Hotel Owner NZ
Hospitality Services Limited Hotel Operations/Franchise NZ

Holder ]
CDL Investments New Zealand Limited Holding Company NZ 67.06 67.25
100% owned subsidiaries of CDL Investments New
Zealand Limited are:
CDL Land New Zealand Limited Property Investment and NZ

Development
KIN Holdings Limited Holding Company NZ 61.30 61.30
100% owned subsidiaries of KIN Holdings Limited
are:
Kingsgate Intemational Corporation Limited Holding Company NZ
Kingsgate Holdings Pty Limited Holding Company Australia
Kingsgate Investments Pty Limited Residential Apartment Australia

Developer
Kingsgate International Pty Limited {de-registered
910/13) Dormant Australia
Kingsgate Hotels Pty Limited Dormant Australia
Birkenhead Holdings Pty Limited Holding Company Australia
Birkenhead Investments Pty Limited Dormant Australia
Hotelcorp New Zealand Limited Holding Company Australia

All of the above subsidiaries have a 31 December balance date.

Although the Group owns less than half of the voting power of the Copthome Hotel & Resort Bay of |slands Joint Venture, it is able
to control the financial and operating policies of the Copthorme Hotel & Resort Bay of Islands Joint Venture so as to obtain benefits
from its activities by virtue of an agreement with the other parties of the Joint Venture. Therefore, the results of ihe Joint Venture are
consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases.
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27. Group entities - cortinued

On 21 March 2014, MCHNZ Investments Limited {100% owned subsidiary of the Company) amalgamated with the Company.

On 30 November 2014, the Company acquired the 30% interest it did not already own in Quantum Limited from Te Tumu Paeroa
for a cash consideration of $14.25 million. The Group recognised an increase in revenue reserves of $8.77 million and a decrease
in non-controlling interests of $23.02 million. The effects of the acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners of the Company
are as follow:

Doliars In Thousands Assets and Liabilities

Company’s ownership interest at 1 January 2014 53,086

Effect of increase in Company's ownership interest 23,025

Share of comprehensive income 691

Company’s ownership interest at 31 December 2014 76,802
28. Accounting estimates and judgements

Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting
pelicies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policles
Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described below.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group adopted a revaluation model of valuing land and buildings rather than the cost model. This results in any future
decreases in asset values being charged in the income statement unless there is a surplus for that asset in the revaluation account
in which case the decrease can be charged 1o equity.

Assessing whether individual properties are impaired may involve estimating the future cash flows expected to be generated by
those propetties. This will in tum involve assumptions, including expected rate of growth in revenue and costs, occupancy and
average room rates and an appropriate discount rate, to apply when discounting future cash flows.

The Group has two remaining properties affected by the Christchurch earthquakes. In assessing the property for impairment the
following assumptions were made:

e The adequacy of the insurance cover for material damage which will cover the cost of all necessary repairs or replacement
properties. .

« The length of the insurance period during which the Group is covered for business interruption for the properties.

» The land underlying the properties is not affected by liquefaction or other geological issues which prevent repairs or reinstatement
of the properties.

Development property

The Group is also exposed to market fluctuations in the value of development properties. The camying value of development
properties is $147.39 million (2013: $139.21 million} while the fair value determined by independent valuers is $270.83 million
{2013: $248.98 million).

In determining fair values, the valuers will also make assumptions relating to section prices, sell down periods, consumer
confidence, unemployment rates, interest rates and external economic factors.

Goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill is tested annually for impairment. This assessment generally requires management to estimate
future cash flows to be generated by cash generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating future cash flows entails
making judgements on expected occupancy rates and average room rates, growth in reverue and costs and an appropriate
discount rate o apply when discounting cash flows.

29. Subsequent event and commitmnent
As announced on 24 December 2014, the Company has entered into a conditional agreement with the Tal Tak Group to acquire the
remaining 38.70% of the shares in KIN Holdings Limited for $31.00 million. This acquisition is subject to approval by the Australian

Foreign Investment Review Board (‘FIRB"). The approval from FIRB was received on 6 February 2015 with the acquisition to be
settied at the end of February 2015. This transaction is considered a non-adjusting event al balance date.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand
Limited

Report on the company and group financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels
New Zealand Limited ("the company") and the group, comprising the company and its
subsidiaries, on pages FIN 1 to FIN 34, The financial statements comprise the statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, the income statements and statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, for both the
company and the group.

Directors' responsibility for the company and group financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of company and group financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand that give a true and
fair view of the matters to which they relate, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of company and group financial statements
that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these company and group financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the company and
group financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the company and group financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, mcluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the company and group’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company and group's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.




Rana

Our firm has also provided other services to the company and group in relation to taxation and
advisory and general accounting services. Subject to certain restrictions, partners and
employees of our firm may also deal with the company and group on normal terms within the
ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the company and group. These matters
have not impaired our independence as auditor of the company and group. The firm has no
other relationship with, or interest in, the company and group.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements on pages FIN 1 to FIN 34:

e comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and the group as at 31
December 2014 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the company and the
group for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

e we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

e jn our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by Millennium & Copthorne
Hotels New Zealand Limited as far as appears from our examination of those records.

Mé{é

10 February 2015
Auckland




Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited (“MCK”) has reported a profit attributable to owners of the
parent of $30.2 million (2013: $27.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014. MCK’s revenue and other
income for the year increased to $148.2 million (2013: $123.4 million).

MCK’s profit before tax and non-controlling interests was $45.0 million (2013: $41.1 million). The key contributors to
profit were CDL Investments New Zealand Limited’s (CDLI) land development and sales operations, the company’s
core New Zealand hotels businesses, and a one-off gain of $17.6 million resulting from the distribution of the
Company’s shareholding in First Sponsor Group Limited (FSGL) during the year. There was also an additional cost
of $2.1 million as a result of accelerated depreciation in respect of Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbourcity.

Shareholders’ funds excluding non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2014 totalled $371.4 million (2013:
$466.4 million). This reduction came about as a result of the capital reduction undertaken as part of the distribution
in specie in relation to the exit from FSGL and which is outlined in more detail below. Part of the reduction was offset
by the issue of $111.2 million worth of non-voting redeemable preference shares (RPSs) in March 2014 which
allowed the Company to strengthen its balance sheet ahead of the capital reduction.

Also reflecting the distribution of the stake in FSGL but not any diminution of value of MCK’s core assets, total assets
at 31 December 2014 were $585.4 million (2013: $719.2 million).

Net asset backing (with land and building revaluations and before distributions) as at 31 December 2014 has
increased significantly to 234.6 cents per share reflecting, inter alia, the impact of the share cancellation which
occurred in the latter part of July 2014. (2013: 133.4 cents per share, based on the share capital as at 31 December
2013).

The past twelve months have seen average room rates and gross operating profits rise as key properties undertook
initiatives to drive revenue and margins and completed refurbishment works in the company’s property enhancement
plans. Revenue for the operating hotels increased by 6.6% to $83.1 million (2013: $78.0 million) and revenue per
available room (REVPAR) increased by 13.3% over 2013. Occupancy also increased to 73.7% in 2014 (2013:
67.7%). Our hotels in Auckland and Queenstown in particular performed well. MCK’s market development
investment in emerging countries notably China continues to contribute to the group’s hotels performance.

Recent statistics show that the number of overseas visitors continues to increase, notably from China and the United
States. With new and increased air services from Asia and a renewed appetite for travel from key markets, we
expect current demand patterns to continue over the short term.

Preparatory works such as applications for resource consents for the refurbishment of Copthorne Hotel Auckland
Harbourcity are underway and we anticipate being in a position to commence site works at some point in the second
half of 2015. The project will involve a complete refit of the building, internal and external services and completely
new rooms. Further details of the refurbished hotel will be provided in 2015 once final designs and scope have been
determined.

As previously stated. on 10 July 2014, MCK announced that it had entered into a conditional agreement with Te
Maori Lodges Limited, a subsidiary of the Maori Trustee, for the acquisition of the 30% interest in Quantum Limited
which it does not already own.

Quantum Limited is the principal operating subsidiary of MCK and owns or leases seven hotels including Millennium
Hotel Queenstown, Copthorne Hotel Rotorua and Kingsgate Hotel Dunedin. Completion of the agreement will result
in MCK taking ownership of these hotels through wholly owned subsidiaries.

Completion of the purchase was subject to approval by the Overseas Investment Office and this approval was
received in November 2014 with completion taking place on 28 November. The financial impact of the acquisition
has been recognized in the second half of 2014 and has added 5.5 cents per share to MCK’s net asset backing.
From a practical point of view, this means that save for its leased and unit title properties, MCK now owns its hotel
assets outright.

We would like to again acknowledge and thank the Maori Trustee, Te Tumu Paeroa for their support of Quantum
Limited and its operations over the past two decades.



No resolution has yet been reached between the landlord of Millennium Hotel Christchurch and the insurers on the
repair or rebuild of this hotel. MCK will update shareholders and the wider market if there are any further
developments.

The acquisition designation on Copthorne Hotel Christchurch Central was lifted by the Canterbury Earthquake
Recovery Authority in the first half of 2014 and, as stated previously, MCK will look at future plans for the site at an
appropriate time in the near future.

CDLI continued to perform strongly and announced another increased operating profit after tax for the year ended 31
December 2014 of $14.7 million (2013: $13.4 million) and reported an increase in its section sales from 202 in 2013
to 248 in 2014 reflecting continuing positive market conditions across CDLI’s portfolio.

CDLI increased its ordinary dividend to 2.2 cents per share from 2.0 cents per share in 2013. MCHNZ’s stake in
CDLI reduced slightly to 67.06% as a result of MCK taking its dividend in cash and not shares.

In Australia, short term leasing of the units at the Zenith Residences continued during the year with occupancy of
over 95% recorded. No sales of the owned units were made in 2014.

On 24 December, MCK announced that it had entered into a conditional agreement with the Tai Tak Group (Tai Tak)
for the acquisition of the remaining 38.7% of the shares in KIN Holdings Limited (KIN Holdings) which MCK did not
already own. KIN Holdings is the holding company for MCK’s Australian operations and assets, which include the
residential units at the Zenith Residences in Sydney and a sales office. The price agreed for the acquisition of the
shares was NZ$ 31 million in cash, which is subject to adjustment in relation to working capital. MCK has now
obtained approval from the Australian Foreign Investment Review Board (FIRB) and this transaction is expected to
settle on the last business day of February 2015. MCK also applied for, and was granted, a waiver from the
requirement under Rule 9.2.1 of the NZX Main Board Listing Rules to obtain the prior approval of MCK shareholders
in relation to the acquisition of the remaining KIN Holdings shares. This transaction ends a long established
association in Australia that started in the early 1990s with the Tai Tak Group, a Singaporean family-owned private
investment group. KIN Holdings and its subsidiaries, which included the formerly listed Kingsgate International
Corporation Limited, owned and developed a number of residential and commercial mixed-used developments and
other assets in Sydney such as the Birkenhead Point Marina development in Drummoyne and Kingsgate Shopping
Centre in Potts Point. MCK and the Tai Tak Group have been long term investors together in Australia and more
recently in China and the Board has greatly appreciated their input. MCK appreciates that Tai Tak’s investment
focus has shifted to other directions and we thank them for their unqualified support over the years.

MCK'’s reasons for the acquisition are straightforward. The Zenith Residences are a valuable property asset for MCK
and the wider group and we have confidence in the residential property market in Sydney and regional sales data
over recent months supports this view. The acquisition will allow MCK to manage this asset independently and
confirms its intention to invest in strategic assets in Australia.

The financial impact of the acquisition will be recognized in 2015 as the acquisition is yet to be completed.

2014 also saw MCK exit its seven-year investment in its associate company First Sponsor Group Limited (FSGL). In
June, MCK shareholders were sent information relating to a scheme of arrangement under which the company
undertook a distribution in specie of its shareholding in First Sponsor Group Limited (FSGL) by way of a capital
reduction. Shareholders were also sent a copy of FSGL’s preliminary prospectus. At a special meeting held on 19
June, ordinary and preference shareholders voted to approve the proposed scheme which took effect on 17 July
following final orders from the High Court received on 10 July.

Under the scheme, for every 1000 ordinary or preference shares held by shareholders, 698 shares were cancelled
and shareholders received 327 FSGL shares. To arrive at the cancellation ratio, MCK used a volume-weighted
average price of 68 cents per MCK share (ordinary or preference), an exchange rate of NZ$1.00 / S$1.07 and has
assumed a price for each FSGL share of S$1.55 (being the mid point of the price range set out in the FSGL
preliminary prospectus).

On 22 July, FSGL completed its Initial Public Offering of shares and listed on the Singapore Exchange. MCK
Shareholders were given the option of using a block sale facility to sell their FSGL shares or have them transferred to
an NZX or ASX broker account or a Singaporean CDP account or sub-account. Shareholders could also elect to hold
their shares and receive share certificates. The block sale facility was operated by Trustees Executors and ran for a
six week period. Shareholders who participated in the block sale facility received their sale proceeds in September.

Due to rounding, the Company retained a small shareholding in FSGL after completion of the scheme. The
Company agreed not to sell or deal with these shares for a minimum period of six months from the listing date but will
look to dispose of this non-core shareholding at some stage at an appropriate time.

In 2014, MCK recognized a total loss contribution of $0.37 million for the period to 22 July 2014 (2013 full year: $9.75
million) from FSGL in its accounts. This reflected the fact that FSGL’s trading results during the period up until 22



July 2014 were a loss of SG$0.78 million which included a loss of SG$12.42 million for the six month period to 30
June 2014 (2013 full year: SG$29.4 million profit from First Sponsor Capital Limited). That said, on completion of the
scheme, MCK’s net asset value as at 31 December 2014 has increased from 133.4 cents per share at the same time
in 2013 to 234.6 cents per share.

MCK has resolved to pay a fully imputed ordinary dividend of 2.4 cents per share (2013: 1.2 cents per ordinary
share). The dividend will be paid on 15 May 2015. The record date will be 8 May 2015.

Taking into account the return of capital by way of distribution in specie which was undertaken in July 2014 as well as
the dividend which has been declared for the 2014 financial year, shareholders will have made a 21% gain on their
shareholding ($139.60 in monetary terms on every 1000 shares [at $0.68 per share]) in the period from May 2014 to
May 2015 on their shareholding. This is calculated on the current value of FSGL's and MCK’s ordinary shares (being
NZ$1.21 per share and NZ$1.34 respectively at 3 February 2015) assuming that shareholders chose to hold both
their FSGL and MCK ordinary shares.

2015 will represent a new start and a chance to reevaluate MCK’s strategic priorities over the next two to three years.
With the acquisition of its interests in Quantum Limited and KIN Holdings Limited, to be settled at the end of this
month, MCK will be able to review and simplify its operating structures. The property improvements made in our
three Queenstown hotels, Copthorne Hotel and Resort Bay of Islands and the successful conversion of the Kingsgate
Hotel Palmerston North to a Copthorne-branded hotel will contribute to future growth. The refurbishment of
Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbourcity will also give MCK a landmark property and will also allow MCK to reposition
and rebrand this important hotel. Management will also look at sustaining increases in revenue and profit that have
been seen in 2014. The Board is therefore positive about MCK’s prospects for the medium term.

New Zealand’s economic indicators are pointing to growth over the next few years. MCK must therefore ensure that
it can take full advantage of increased tourism and business activity in all areas of its operations.

On behalf of my fellow directors, | would like to thank the Company’s management and staff for their work and
dedication during 2014, a year of unique challenges and consolidation for MCK.

(el 1

Wong Hong Ren
Chairman
10 February 2015



MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE HOTELS NEW ZEALAND
REPORTS INCREASED 2014 PROFIT AND DIVIDEND

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited (NZX: MCK) today reported its
preliminary results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and announced a profit after tax
and non-controlling interests of $30.2 million (2013: $27.1 million) on total revenue and other
income of $ 148.2 million (2013: $ 123.4 million).

As well as an increased profit result, MCK also announced an increase in its fully imputed
dividend from 1.2 cents per share for the 2013 financial year to 2.4 cents per share for 2014.
The dividend will be paid to shareholders on 15 May 2015. The record date will be 8 May
2015.

The results capped off what Chairman H R Wong described as a “year of unique challenges
and consolidation for the Company”. MCK’s challenges included raising over $110 million
worth of new capital before undertaking a return of capital in the form of an in specie
distribution of First Sponsor Group Limited shares to MCK’s shareholders in July 2014.

MCK’s core operations in hotels and property development saw improved results with the
land development unit (through NZX-listed CDL Investments New Zealand Limited)
contributing to MCK’s overall profit through increased section sales and resulting profits.
MCK’s core New Zealand hotel operations also saw improvements in revenue with an
increase of 6.6% percent and occupancy increasing to 73.7%.

During 2014, MCK consolidated its operations in New Zealand and in Australia. In
November, it completed the acquisition of the 30 percent interest in an operating subsidiary it
did not already own from the Maori Trustee which means that it now owns outright its freehold
hotel interests in New Zealand and in late December it announced that it had entered into an
agreement to acquire the minority stake in an operating subsidiary which deals with its
Australian operations from the Singaporean-based Tai Tak Group. MCK announced
yesterday that this transaction will settle at the end of February 2015.

MCK also announced that preliminary works for the refurbishment of its key Auckland hotel
Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbourcity had commenced and that it was anticipated that site
works would commence at some stage in the second half of this year.

Mr. Wong noted that property improvements and refurbishments had and would contribute to

future growth. With management looking to sustain increases in revenue and profit, he said
that the Board was positive about MCK’s medium-term future prospects.

Summary of results:

. Profit after tax and non-controlling interests $30.2 million (2013: $27.1 m)
. Profit before tax and non-controlling interests $45.0 million (2013: $41.1 m)
. Group revenue and other income $148.2 milion  (2013: $123.4 m)
. Shareholders’ funds excluding non-controlling interests $371.4 million  (2013: $466.4 m)
. Total assets $585.4 million  (2013: $719.2m)
ENDS

Issued by Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited

Enquiries to:

B K Chiu

Managing Director
(09) 353 5058



